
 

 

  
PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY, OCTOBER 2, 

2017 IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, 

WEST BRANCH, IOWA 

 

Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Mary Beth Stevenson mbstevenson115@gmail.com 
Council Member Tim Shields timshieldswbcc@yahoo.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk 
 

Gordon Edgar  gordon@westbranchiowa.org 
 

Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business 

are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may 

therefore be subject to public disclosure. 

 

AGENDA 

 

A. Call to Order 

 
 
B. Opening Ceremonies 

 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 
 
C. Roll Call 

 
 
D. Public Hearing 

1. Open Public Hearing on the College Street Bridge Replacement Project (Roll Call Vote) 

 
 
E. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations  

 
1. Employee Recognition – Becky Knoche 
2. West Branch Library Annual Report – Nick Shimmin 
3. West Branch Main Street / Christmas Past – Kevin Rogers 

 
F. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your 

name and address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and 



 

 

written comments may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk. Special instructions for public 

comments will be provided at the meeting if a public hearing or quasi-judicial matter is scheduled 

on the agenda. 

 
 
G. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 

Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to 

discuss any item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent 

Agenda for discussion.  The remaining items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on with one 

motion being made for all items on the Consent Agenda.  Then the item will be removed from the 

Consent Agenda, and will be separately considered and voted on. 
 

1. Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes September 18, 2017. 
2. Approve Claims Report. 
3. Motion Accepting the West Branch Library Annual Report. 
4. Motion Approving the CDG Street Closure Request. 
5. Motion Approving the CDG Special Event Permit. 

 
H. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 

 
1. Discussion Item: Staff is Requesting a Statement of Direction Regarding Bonding 

Obligation Options. 
2. Motion Approving the Appointment of Jace Gongora to the West Branch Fire 

Department. 
3. Resolution 1651: A Resolution Authorizing Internal Advance to the North First Street 

Improvements Project Capital Fund. 
4. Resolution 1652: A Resolution Authorizing the Transfer of Funds for Approved 

Capital Projects.  
5. Motion Approving a Change Order Main Street Water Main Improvements Change 

Order No. 1. 
6. Motion Approving Pay Estimate No.1 for Main Street Water Main Improvements.  
7. Motion Approving Pay Estimate No.1 for North First Street Improvements.  
8. Motion Approving the Second Reading of an Ordinance Change of 69.08(section 55) 

entitled, “No Parking Zones”. 

 
 
I. Reports 

 
1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Other Staff Reports 

 
 
J. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 
 
K. Adjournment 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  October 2, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Notice of Public Hearing 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. 

DATE:  September 25, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  

City of West Branch, Iowa will be considering approving the following described project: 

 Bridge Replacement on College Street over the West Branch potion of Wapsinonic Creek. 

 Reconstruction of College Street from 1st Street to 4th Street. 

 Reconstruction of 2nd Street from College Street to Green Street. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Convene Public Hearing 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

 

Public Hearing Item 1 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Public Hearing Item 1 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Public Hearing Item 1 



 

 

 

Consent Item 1 
 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording 

is available for inspection on the City of West Branch Website at 

www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are not approved until the next 

regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 

 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting                               September 
18, 2017  
Council Chambers                                                                                                      7:00 p.m. 

  
Mayor Roger Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Mayor 

Laughlin  invited the Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the 

Pledge of Allegiance.   Roll call: Mayor Laughlin was present.  Council members:  Colton Miller, 

Tim Shields, Mary Beth Stevenson, Jordan Ellyson and Brian Pierce were present.  Laughlin 

welcomed the audience and the following City staff: City Administrator Redmond Jones, Deputy 

City Clerk Leslie Brick, Finance Officer Gordon Edgar, Library Director Nick Shimmin, Public 

Works Director Matt Goodale and Park & Recreation Director Melissa Russell and Police Chief 

Mike Horihan. 

 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS. 

Jim Dane, of the Iowa City Kiwanis group gave a presentation to the Council on 

the mission of Kiwanis and their desire to have a club re-established in West 

Branch.  Dane said he has been in contact with the school district and is excited 

for their participation.   

 

Sergeant Hanna was unavailable this evening for the award presentation.  This 

item was postponed to a later date. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT. 

There was no public comment. 

 

APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION.  
Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes September 11, 2017 

Resolution 1649- approving the Street Financial Report for Iowa Department of Transportation 

(FY17) 

Approve Claims 

Resolution 1650- approving the option to pursue Wetland Mitigation on the Cubby Park project 

site. 

Jones explained that this was a follow-up from the last Council meeting when the issue 

was raised due lack of available wetland mitigation bank credits.  Jones explained that 

this resolution was to approve on-site mitigation as the most viable option at this time.  

Miller suggested of using a portion of the West Branch Village for mitigation as an 

option if the Council choose to explore it and if time permitted. 

 

 
EXPENDITURES     9/18/2017  
ALLIANT ENERGY    UTILITIES-WATER TOWER    10,436.36  
BARRON MOTOR SUPPLY   MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES    578.45  
BIG TEN RENTALS    TENT & CHAIRS-HHTD     1,194.60  
BP AMOCO    VEHICLE FUEL     188.90  

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

BROWN'S WEST BRANCH   RUNNING BOARDS     498.00  
BUSINESS RADIO SALES   RADIO SUPPLIES     140.50  
CEDAR COUNTY RECORDER   314 N FIRST ST RECORDING FEES    108.00  
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP   LEGAL FEES     1,286.00  
GALAXY CLEANING SERVICES   GALAXY CLEANING SERVICES    1,209.04  
GREAT AMERICAN BUSINESS PRODUCTS  PET WASTE BAGS     640.00  
HAWKINS INC    AZONE 15      681.95  
IMWCA      IMWCA      5,143.00  
IOWA LAW ENFORCEMENT INTEL  LEIN CONFERENCE     175.00  
JOHNSON COUNTY REFUSE INC.   RECYCLING AUGUST 2017    3,776.25  
LINN COUNTY R.E.C.    SIREN @ GREENVIEW     108.33  
MENARDS     SUPPLIES      96.71  
NORTHWAY WELL AND PUMP COM  WELL 6 NEW MOTOR & PUMP, TEST   36,260.12  
NORTHWAY WELL AND PUMP COM  WELL 6 REPLACE PIPE     22,398.00  
OLSON, KEVIN D    LEGAL SERVICES-SEPT, 2017    1,500.00  
OVERDRIVE INC    BOOKS, AUDIO BOOKS    243.99  
PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANC   LIB-POSTAGE METER RENTAL    102.39  
PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER  REPLENISH POSTAGE     965.20  
PORT 'O' JONNY INC.    SERVICE-CEMETERY     87.00  
PRINTING HOUSE    TREATMENT PROTOCOL BOOKS    95.50  
QUILL CORP    CHAIR/SUPPLIES     220.53  
REPUBLIC SERVICES    DOCUMENT DESTRUCTION    50.95  
SCHIMBERG CO    HYDRANT      456.02  
SHIMMIN, NICK    WEBSITE DESIGN, TRAINING & IMPLEMENTATION  2,500.00  
SPRINGDALE AGENCY    FIRE PAK INSURANCE     14,681.00  
SUMMIT COMPANIES    RECHARGE FIRE EXTINGUISHERS    79.75  
TRUGREEN PROCESSING CENTER   LAWN SERVICE-LIONS FIELD    149.00  
UPS      SEWER-SHIPPING     20.86  
WEST BRANCH COMMUNITY SCHOOL  GYM RENT-VARIOUS P & R PROGRAMS   797.50  
WEST BRANCH REPAIRS   REPAIR SUPPLIES     139.99  
WEST BRANCH TIMES    ADVERTISING/LEGAL PUBLICATION   2,050.84  
    
TOTAL            109,059.73  
    
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS    
    
HUPPENBAUER, AMBER   UTILITY REFUND     41.16  
STEGER, ROBERT    UTILITY REFUND    66.45  
STUMBO, STEVE    UTILITY REFUND     60.25  
WEST BRANCH FORD    REPAIRS-2014 TAURUS    406.54  
CULLIGAN WATER TECHNOLOGIES  WATER SOFTENER SERVICE    39.15  
UPS      SEWER-SHIPPING     20.86  
COSTCO WHOLESALE    SUPPLIES      236.08  
US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE   COPIER LEASES     300.80  
    
TOTAL            1,171.29  
    
PAYROLL       9/08/2017      42,942.80  
    
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES         153,173.82  
    
FUND TOTALS    
001   GENERAL FUND    39,687.94 
022   CIVIC CENTER    842.8 
031   LIBRARY    7,698.89 
036   TORT LIABILITY    19,432.02 
110   ROAD USE TAX    3593.9 
112   TRUST AND AGENCY   4573.38 
310   COLLEGE STREET BRIDGE   16.44 
314   N FIRST ST IMPROVEMENTS   187.88 
315   MAIN ST WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENTS 79.88 
316   I & I LINE/GROUT PH 2   79.87 
600   WATER FUND    69,800.41 
610   SEWER FUND    7,180.41 
    
GRAND TOTAL     153,173.82 



 

 

 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Shields to approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES:  Ellyson, 

Shields, Miller, Stevenson, Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
    

PUBLIC HEARING/NON-CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion to approve a Special Event Permit to consume alcohol as a part of a wedding toast. /Move 

to action. 

The permit was submitted by Little Lights requesting permission to use Heritage Square for this 

short event.  

Motion by Shields, second by Miller to approve the Special Permit.  AYES:  Ellyson, Shields, 

Miller, Stevenson, Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Discussion- College Street Bridge Replacement Project 

City Engineer, Dave Schechinger reported that a public meeting was held on September 5, 2017 to 

allow residents to express concerns on the bridge replacement project.  Based on comments, 

Schechinger said there was an option to request a variance on the design that may help with water 

flow from the creek in flooding events.  Schechinger said another public meeting will be held on 

Monday, October 2, 2017 at 5:00 in the Council Chambers to discuss this option with the residents. 

 

Motion approving Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation-Phase 2, Pay Estimate #1./Move to action. 

Goodale said that he was satisfied with the work performed with the company and noted that due 

to some collapsed sewer mains, there will be some street patching needed when the project was 

completed. 

Motion by Stevenson, second by Shields to approve pay estimate #1.  AYES:  Stevenson, Shields, 

Pierce, Miller, Ellyson.  NAYS: None.  Motion carried. 

    

Discussion – West Branch Village Trail Project 

Schechinger provided an update on the project and said he forwarded background information to 

Jones to get him up to speed on the project.  He also said that he had checked with the DNR again 

and that the project review was still out about one month.  The Council expressed concern that the 

Reap Grant would be in jeopardy if the DNR did not take action soon. 

 

Motion to approve Change Order #2 for the North First Street Improvements Project./Move to 

action. 

Schechinger described issues uncovered when the old concrete was removed last week from North 

First Street.  Unsuitable soil issues, abandoned storm sewer lines and the removal of an 

underground tank are the result of the change order. 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Stevenson to Change order #2.  AYES:  Ellyson, Stevenson, Miller, 

Pierce, Shields.  NAYS: None.  Motion carried. 

 

Discussion – Gilbert Drive extension 

Schechinger presented a proposed concept for the Gilbert Street extension that he had been working 

on with the property owner.  He explained that when the park property was purchased, it did not 

include the land needed to make the connection.  The Council felt that the proposed plan was not 

feasible and tabled the discussion. 

 

 

Motion approving First Reading of an Ordinance change to Chapter 69.08(55) 

Chief Horihan explained that he had received complaints from business owners and residents on 

Northridge Drive on lack of parking.  Recently, a new business moved into the neighborhood and 

more on street parking is needed.  Horihan said this change would allow parking on the north side 



 

 

of the two way portion of Northside Drive.   Miller requested staff to notify affected property 

owners via letter advising them of the proposed parking change.  He asked that it be done 

immediately so property owners had a chance to provide feedback and/or raise concerns. 

 

CITY STAFF REPORTS  
Jones presented a sample business card he designed and asked if any other Council members 

would like to use the design.  Jones recapped the week’s activities including how City staff 

handled the construction on North First Street and the school bond vote.  He praised the staff for 

going above and beyond in making a potentially bad situation a positive one for the City. 

 

Goodale reported that the new salt shed had been completed and that all material was moved the 

shed.   

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  
Mayor Laughlin said he will be filing nomination papers this week. 

 

Stevenson asked for an update on the proposed Chicken Ordinance being reviewed by the Animal 

Control Commission and said that she was hoping to be able to vote on it prior to her departure 

from her council seat. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn regular meeting by Shields, second by Ellyson.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  

City Council meeting adjourned at 8:49 p.m. 

   

 

 

                           

_________________________________________  

                                          Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  October 2, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Approve Claims / Payroll / Items paid between meetings  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon R. Edgar, Finance Officer 

DATE:  September 25, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditure that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and 

other financial items that are related to council approved day to day operational tasks. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve claims/Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 2 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  October 2, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion Accepting the West Branch Library Annual Report 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Nick Shimmin, Library Director 

DATE:  September 26, 2017 

     

BACKGROUND: 
The Library provides materials, programs, services, technology, and space to support all ages in 

their endeavors to learn, to discover, to engage, and to connect with one another, the West Branch 

community, and the wider world. 

Per the West Branch Code of Ordinances, the West Branch Public Library is required to provide 

the City Council with an annual report.  The library director prepares the annual report document 

in conjunction with the State’s statistical reports and it is then approved for submission by the 

Library Board. 

The attached annual report was approved by the Library Board of Trustees as the September 

meeting.  A presentation will be given to provide supplemental information and to answer any 

questions the City Council may have.  

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Accept the West Branch Library Annual Report 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

Consent Item 3 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Insert West 

Branch 

Library 

Annual Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  October 2, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion Approving the CDG Street Closure Request 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Rogers, Executive Director of CDG 

DATE:  September 25, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Kevin Rogers, Executive Director of Community Development Group (CDG) has 

submitted a Street Closure Request for Christmas Past 2017.  Information is attached.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Motion to approve street closure / Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

 

Consent Item 4 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

  

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  October 2, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion Approving the CDG special Event Permit. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Rogers, Executive Director of CDG 

DATE:  September 25, 2017 

     

BACKGROUND: 

Kevin Rogers, Executive Director of Community Development Group (CDG) has 

submitted a Special Event Permit / Town Hall Rental / Open Burning Permit for Christmas 

Past 2017.  Information is attached.  Motion to approve permit. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Motion to approve permit / Move Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

 

Consent Item 5 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  October 2, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Staff is requesting a statement of direction 

regarding bonding obligation options.  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  September 25, 2017 

     

BACKGROUND: 

If we want to proceed with a bond sale on November 6 for the City, the Council will need 

to decide how much they want to borrow.  A decision on October 2 allows the Official 

Statement to be approved on October 16 so we can sell bonds on November 6 and close 

in early December.   
 
Option #1 – Borrow $1,065,000 
 
Option #2 – Borrow $3,710,000 
 
Option #3 – Borrow $4,620,000 
 
Staff has also been reviewing an option to borrow $4,100,000 for the reasons stated in 

option 2# and Option #3.  Receiving recent change orders leads to the notion that several 

of our current capital improvements maybe under estimated or may have lower 

contingency expectations than will be needed once these projects enter into the 

construction phase of these projects.  Combined with the expensive proposition of going 

back to the bond market if our projects run out of money once they are started, we believe 

$4.1 million will insulate our projects from the implications of overages, and keep us 

below of reaching 80% of our debt capacity. 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Give consensus / direction statement on general 

obligation 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

 

Option #1 – Borrow $1,065,000 

This option will give the City the money to pay for the CIP projects only, which include 

College Street Bridge and Extension.  Some of these projects are complete or are under 

contract/construction now, and the City needs or will need money soon to pay these 

projects in full. 

Risk Associated:  By only borrowing this amount you are not including any Park 

Improvement monies from your bond referendum.  You risk the interest rates moving 

upward before you can lock in at least some of the park improvement money. 

 

 
 



 

 

 

Option #2 – Borrow $3,710,000 

This option will give the City the money to pay for the CIP projects (with College Street 

Bridge and Extension included) and also $2,600,000 of the park project.  This would 

leave another $900,000 of your remaining authority left to borrow at a later time, maybe 

summer/fall 2018.  The original referendum was $4m and the City borrowed $500,000 

for engineering/planning and design in 2016.  This option has been discussed with the 

prior administration, based on the benefit of only borrowing so much to get the park 

project underway but following bidding of the project and seeing if there are change 

orders (up or down).  This allows you to only borrow what you need to for the project if 

the bids come in lower than anticipated. 

Risks Associated:  By only borrowing part of the park money you risk the rise in interest 

rates for the second part.   

 

 



 

 

 

 

Option #3 – Borrow $4,620,000 

This option will give the City the money to pay for the CIP projects (with College Street 

Bridge and Extension included) and all of the remaining authority on the park 

project.  There would be no additional funds to borrow for the park, those costs would 

have to come from cash sources.  This would not require another bond issue for the park 

10-12 months from now.   

Risk Associated – Over-borrowing for the park project.  Some Cities would say you could 

never over-borrow for this type of project and say they could spend the extra on upgrades, 

but if the project came in significantly lower you don’t have the option to pay the money 

back until the call date, which is 6-7 years away.  

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  October 2, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion Approving the Appointment of Jace Gongora to the West 

Branch Fire Department 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk and Fire Chief Kevin Stoolman 

DATE:  September 25, 2017 

     

BACKGROUND: 

Motion to approve appointment of Jace Gongora to the West Branch Fire Department.  

Approved by the WBFD on September 13, 2017. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Approval from the City Council on this topic 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

  

 

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  October 2, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1651: A Resolution Authorizing Internal Advance to the 

North First Street Improvements Project Capital Fund.  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edger, Finance Officer  

DATE:  September 26, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND: 

In order to meet payment obligations on the North 1st Street Improvements Project, the City 

must loan funds to the project prior to completing the bond sale.  This resolution will allow 

the City to loan up to $365,000 to the project.  The loan will be paid back when the bonds 

are sold. 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Approval of this Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1651  

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING INTERNAL ADVANCE TO THE NORTH FIRST 

STREET IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT CAPITAL FUND 

 

  

 

WHEREAS, the City has undertaken and approved the North First Street 

Improvements Project and the City has incurred certain engineering fees and construction 

costs (the “Project Costs”) in connection with the planning and construction of the 

Project; and  

 

WHEREAS, in order to make provision for the payment of the Project Costs, it is 

necessary to facilitate an internal advance of funds and to facilitate the repayment of said 

advance from future bond proceeds;  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, as follows: 

 

Section 1. It is directed that an amount not to exceed Three Hundred Sixty Five 

Thousand Dollars ($365,000.00) be advanced from the General Fund (the “Advance”) in 

order to fund the Project Costs.  The Advance shall be repaid to the Road Use Tax Fund 

without interest, out of future bond proceeds.  It is intended that the Advance shall be repaid 

in one (1) annual installment, on or before July 1, 2018.  

 

 Section 2. All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith, are hereby 

repealed, to the extent of such conflict. 

 

   Passed and approved this 2nd day of October, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 2, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1652: A Resolution Authorizing the Transfer of Funds 

for Approved Capital Projects. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edger, Finance Officer 

DATE:  September 26, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  

In order to meet payment obligations on the Main Street Water Main Improvement Project 

and the Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project Phase 2, the city must fund the projects.  This 

transfer will partially fund the Water Main Project and fully fund the Sanitary Sewer 

Project.  

  

In order to meet payment obligations on the North 1st Street Improvements Project, the City 

must transfer funds prior to completing the bond financing for the project.  This transfer 

will cover the first pay estimate for this project with the balance of the loan amount to be 

transferred in about sixty days.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Approval of this Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1652 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF FUNDS 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa that 

the Finance Officer is hereby authorized to transfer funds in the amount of $180,000.00 

from the General Fund (001) into the North First Street Improvements Capital Project Fund 

(314) per Resolution 1651; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa that the Finance Officer is hereby authorized to transfer funds in the amount of 

$50,000.00 from the Water Fund (600) into the Main Street Water Main Improvements 

Capital Projects Fund (315), and $152,000.00 from the Sewer Fund (610) ) into the Sanitary 

Sewer Rehabilitation Project – Phase 2 Capital Projects Fund (316) to pay engineering fees 

and construction costs (the “Project Costs”) in connection with the planning and 

construction of these Projects.  

 

 

Passed and approved this 2nd day of October, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      _________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

           Redmond Jones II, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  October 2, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion Approving a Change Order Main Street Water Main 

Improvements Change Order No. 1 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Eric Gould, Project Engineer / Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. 

DATE:  September 26, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Proposed change to extend contract completion date to November 15, 2017. 

 

Proposed change requested by City Staff to install 8 inch water main fixtures for future 

extension on west side of N. 6th Street, reconfigure the existing 4 inch water main 

connection, and rotate the hydrant on the east side of N. 6th Street. 

 

Additional labor and material cost for lowering water main under existing 10 inch sanitary 

sewer at the intersection of 5th Street, and repairing a leaking clay sewer service for 

property #519 encountered during construction.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Approval from the City Council on this topic 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

 

 

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  October 2, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM:  Motion Approving Pay Estimate No. 1 for Main Street Water Main 

Improvements. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Veenstra & Kimm, Inc  

DATE:  September 26, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Review construction to date and issue payment for work completed on project. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Approval from the City Council on this topic 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  October 2, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM:  Motion Approving Pay Estimate No. 1 for North First Street 

Improvements. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Veenstra & Kimm, Inc  

DATE:  September 26, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Review construction to date and issue payment for work completed on project. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Approval from the City Council on this topic 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

Non Consent Item 7 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 2, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion Approving the Second Reading of an Ordinance Change of 

69.08(section 55) entitled, “No Parking Zones”.  

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Police Chief, Mike Horihan 

DATE:  September 22, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  
There have been ongoing issues and the city has had numerous complaints of limited parking on 

Northridge Dr. This ordinance would permit more parking for residents of Northridge as well as for 

other businesses on that street.  
 
Subject: Change in ordinance 69.08(55) and 69.09(7) Overnight Parking. 
No parking zone. This is what 69.08(55) says. Both sides of the two-way traffic Street and the inside edge 

of the one way street of Northridge Drive.  This is the recommended change.  

“55.  The south side of the two-way traffic street and the inside edge of the one-way street of Northridge 

Drive.”   

This means that there would be parking on the north side of the two-way traffic street.  There is an 

ordinance that says they can't park in front of driveways/business drive. Parking would be ok on the north-

side of Northridge Drive until one way starts.  
 
There is a concern of business owner's on Northridge Drive that Northridge Drive will become a storage lot 

if we allow parking on that street.  For this reason, it is recommended that the City of West Branch make 

the following ordinance addition.  
 
69.09 Overnight Parking. Parking is prohibited between the hours of 2:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. on the 

following: 
 

7. On the north side on the two-way traffic street of Northridge Drive. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:       

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR: 

COUNCIL ACTION: 

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

Non Consent Item 8 



 

 



 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

55.   The south side of the two-way traffic street and the 

inside edge of the one-way street of Northridge Drive. 

Current language 

Proposed language 

 
 7.   On the north side on the two-way traffic street of Northridge Drive. Proposed language 



 

 

 


